
       NOTICE OF MEETING 

Standing Advisory Committee for Religious 
Education 

 

PLEASE NOTE THE CHANGE OF VENUE 
 
WEDNESDAY, 12TH SEPTEMBER, 2007 at 19:00 HRS – OUTSIDE VENUE. 
 
Group A: Christian Denominations & other Faiths represented in Haringey 
Ms Jenny Stonhold (Chair) United Reformed Church  
Rev Robert Allaway  Baptist Churches 
Ms Sara Joy Leviten  Board of Deputies of British Jews 
Ms Soteroulla Nicolaides  Greek Orthodox 
Mr K Ranganathan  Hindu (Shiva) Temple Trust 
Vacancy Methodist Churches 
Mr Mohamed Ibrahim  Muslim Educational Trust 
Vacancy North London Buddhist Centre 
Mr Abdool Alli  North London Islamic Cultural Society 
Mr Andie Frost Peace Alliance 
Mr Lano Akiwumi  Pentecostal Churches (Freedom’s Ark) 
Mr Nigel Kielczewski  Quakers (Society of Friends) 
Mr Peter Ward  RC Diocese of Westminster 
Major David Taylor Salvation Army FCFC 
Vacancy Seventh Day Adventists 
Ms Breda Parsons  Spiritual Assembly of the Bahai's 
Ms Dora-Marie Goulet The Mennonites 
 
Group B: Church of England: 
Mr Eddie Griffith, Mrs J Jamieson, Mr Graham Marriner, Mr Albert Ryder, Revd Dr Jonathan 
Trigg, Mr John Shannon. 
 
Group C: Professional Associations: 
Ms Aurelie Bivigou (NUT), Mr Glenford Johnson (NUT), Ms Naina Parmar (NUT), 
Mr Horatio Ward (NUT), Vacancy (NUT),  
Mr Andy Yarrow (ASCL) (Vice-Chair)  
Ms Susan Kambalu (NAS/UWT) 
 
Group D: Local Education Authority Group: 
Cllr Carolyn Baker, Cllr Emma Jones, Cllr Sheila Rainger, Vacancy 
Ms Barbara Breed, Mr Livinius E Onyearugbulem  
 
Co-opted Non-Voting Members:   
Mr Norman Bacrac  British Humanist Association 
Mr Tony Hall  Jehovah’s Witness 
AGENDA 



 

2 

 
 
1. APOLOGIES    
 
2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST    
 
 A member with a personal interest in a matter who attends a meeting of the authority 

at which the matter is considered must disclose to that meeting the existence and 
nature of that interest at the commencement of that consideration, or when the 
interest becomes apparent.  
 
A member with a personal interest in a matter also has a prejudicial interest in that 
matter if the interest is one which a member of the public with knowledge of the 
relevant facts would reasonably regard as so significant that it is likely to prejudice the 
member's judgment of the public interest and if it does not affect your financial 
position or the financial position of a person or body as described in paragraph 8 of 
the Code of Conduct and does not relate to the determining of any approval, consent, 
licence, permission or registration in relation to you or any person or body described 
in paragraph 8 of the Code of Conduct. 
 

3. MINUTES & MATTERS ARISING  (PAGES 1 - 6)  
 
 To approve the minutes of the meeting held on 18 June 2007. 

 
4. LAUNCH OF THE AGREED SYLLABUS    
 
 Tuesday 25 September 2007. 

 
5. SACRE & COUNCIL WEBSITES    
 
6. NASACRE CHAIRS OF LONDON SACRES  (PAGES 7 - 20)  
 
 To receive feedback from the meeting. 

 
7. OFSTED REPORT ON RE.  (PAGES 21 - 64)  
 
8. PLANNING FOR THE FUTURE OF HARINGEY SACRE  (PAGES 65 - 70)  
 
 30+ things a good SACRE can do. 

 
9. MEMBERSHIP OF YOUNG PEOPLE ON SACRE    
 
10. RE AT ST THOMAS MORE RC SCHOOL    
 
 To receive a presentation from the Head of RE 

 
11. AOB    
 
12. DATES OF THE NEXT MEETINGS    
 



 

3 

 All meetings start at 7:00pm: 
 
Thursday 13 December 2007  
Tuesday 4 March 2008 
 
 

 
 
Yuniea Semambo 
Head of Member Services &  
Local Democracy, 5th Floor 
River Park House  
225 High Road  
Wood Green  
London N22 8HQ 
 

Anne Thomas 
Principal Committee Coordinator 
(Non Cabinet Committees) 
Tel No: 020 8489 2941 
Fax No: 020 8489 2660  
Email: anne.thomas@haringey.gov.uk  
 
05 September 2007 

 
 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



MINUTES OF THE STANDING ADVISORY COMMITTEE FOR RELIGIOUS EDUCATION 
MONDAY, 18 JUNE 2007 

Group A: Christian Denominations & other Faiths represented in Haringey 
 
*Ms Jenny Stonhold (Chair) United Reformed Church  
*Rev Robert Allaway  Baptist Churches 
*Ms Sara Joy Leviten  Board of Deputies of British Jews 
*Ms Soteroulla Nicolaides  Greek Orthodox Church 
Mr K Ranganathan  Hindu (Shiva) Temple Trust 
Vacancy Methodist Churches 
*Mr Mohamed Ibrahim  Muslim Educational Trust 
Vacancy North London Buddhist Centre 
Mr Abdool Alli  North London Islamic Cultural Society 
Mr Andie Frost Peace Alliance 
*Mr Lano Akiwumi  Pentecostal Churches (Freedom’s Ark) 
Mr Nigel Kielczewski  Quakers (Society of Friends) 
*Mr Peter Ward  RC Diocese of Westminster 
Major David Taylor Salvation Army FCFC 
Ms Breda Parsons  Spiritual Assembly of the Bahai's 
 
Group B: Church of England: 
 
Mr Eddie Griffith 
Mrs J Jamieson  
*Mr Graham Marriner 
*Mr Albert Ryder 
Revd Dr Jonathan Trigg,  
 
Group C: Professional Associations: 
 
*Ms Aurelie Bivigou (NUT),  
*Mr Glenford Johnson (NUT),  
*Ms Naina Parmar (NUT), 
Mr Horatio Ward (NUT),  
Vacancy (NUT),  
*Mr Andy Yarrow (ASCL) (Vice-Chair)  
*Ms Susan Kambalu (NAS/UWT) 
 
Group D: Local Education Authority Group: 
 
*Cllr Emma Jones 
Cllr Sheila Rainger 
Vacancy ~ Councillor 
Vacancy ~ Councillor 
Ms Barbara Breed  
Mr Livinius E Onyearugbulem  
 
Co-opted Non-Voting Members:   
 
*Mr Norman Bacrac  British Humanist Association 
Mr Tony Hall  Jehovah’s Witness 
*Ms Dora-Marie Goulet The Mennonites 
 
* Members present 
 

Agenda Item 3Page 1



MINUTES OF THE STANDING ADVISORY COMMITTEE FOR RELIGIOUS EDUCATION 
MONDAY, 18 JUNE 2007 

 

MINUTE 
NO. 

 
SUBJECT/DECISION 

ACTION 
BY 

 
SACRE01.   
 

APOLOGIES  

 Apologies for absence were received from: 
 
Group A:  Mr K Ranganathan and Ms Breda Parsons. 
 

 
 

SACRE02.   
 

MINUTES &  MATTERS ARISING  

 RESOLVED 
 
That the minutes of the meeting held on 22 March 2007 were 
approved. 
 
Matters arising: 
 
SACRE 13 
 
Rev Allaway had been substituted for the meeting held on 33 March 
2007. 
 
SACRE 19 
 
The meeting date for 6 September 2007 was changed to 12 
September 2007. 
 
SACRE 20 
 
Ms Chaplin advised the Committee that the Islam Expo Exhibition had 
been postponed for a year as the timescale was too short to organise 
an event on the same scale as last year.   Islam Awareness week 
would still take place and the theme for the week was the same as 
last year ‘One world one people’. 
 

 
 

SACRE03.   
 

MEMBERSHIP UPDATE  

 The Committee was informed that Cllr Santry had tendered her 
resignation from the Committee.  The Clerk was requested to seek 
confirmation of Cllr Santry’s resignation in writing and the name of her 
replacement.  It was also noted that Eddie Griffith could not be a 
council representative as he was already on SACRE as a Church of 
England representative. 
 
The Committee also reviewed the report attached to the agenda and 
requested that dates where Members were not expected to have 
attended the meetings should be shaded.    Members further 
discussed and considered the co-option of young people and parents 
onto the Committee.   The Committee decided to look at this in more 
detail once the Agreed Syllabus for RE was launched in September 
2007. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 2



MINUTES OF THE STANDING ADVISORY COMMITTEE FOR RELIGIOUS EDUCATION 
MONDAY, 18 JUNE 2007 

 

 
RESOLVED  
 
That confirmation be sought that Cllr Santry had resigned from the 
Committee.  That replacement Members be sought for Cllr Santry and 
Cllr Griffith. 
 

 
 
 
 

AT 

SACRE04.   
 

LOCAL AUTHORITY UPDATE  

 The Committee was informed by Ms Breed that the Authority 
recognised that most schools acknowledged different religions in their 
schools and that students took time off for religious festivals.   The 
Director of Children & Young Peoples Services, Ms Sharon 
Shoesmith would be writing to all schools to support their young 
people and allow pupils authorised absences from school to celebrate 
religious festivals.    This would include, for example,  Muslims who 
attended Roman Catholic schools.  Ms Shoesmith had requested that 
SACRE support her letter. 
 
The Committee considered the proposal and requested that the letter 
to all schools should include the following: 
 

• That the letter should be written in general terms not attaching 
specific dates. 

• That staff as well as students should be granted authorised 
absence. 

• That the letter should be accompanied by guidance for schools 
which would be helpful. 

 
RESOLVED 
 
That the Committee agreed to endorse the Director’s letter in support 
of pupils being granted authorised absence to celebrate religious 
festivals.  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

SACRE05.   
 

SCHOOL OPEN DAYS FOR 2008  

 The Committee was asked to note the proposed school open days for 
2008. 
 
RESOLVED 
 
That the report be noted. 
 

 
 

SACRE06.   
 

LAUNCH OF THE AGREED SYLLABUS  

 Mr Breed advised the Committee that the invitations to the launch of 
the Agreed Syllabus for Religious Education had been issued.   Mr 
Yarrow offered to invite to the launch the children from Hornsey 
School for Girls Gospel Choir to sing.   Ms Parmar offered to identify 
elements of some work she had been doing linked to the use of ICT 
and teaching about Hinduism.  Mr Ibrahim offered to contact the 

 
 

Page 3



MINUTES OF THE STANDING ADVISORY COMMITTEE FOR RELIGIOUS EDUCATION 
MONDAY, 18 JUNE 2007 

 

Wightman Road Mosque for a Muslim contribution to the launch.  Ms 
Breed further requested that all members invited to the launch to 
RSVP. 
 

SACRE07.   
 

REPORT ON HARINGEY MUSLIM NETWORK & SAFETY FORUM 
MEETING 18 APRIL 2007 

 

  
The Chair reported that along with Ms Chaplin, she had attended the 
Haringey Forum meeting held on 18 April 2007.  Concerns had been 
raised there about young people not being allowed by their school to 
have leave of absence to attend religious holiday events.   Discussion 
had taken place around information made available to schools about 
different faiths and concern had been expressed that schools were 
unaware of what information was available.  It was suggested that 
schools should have open dialogue with their faith communities.  Ms 
Chaplin advised that there was already a lot of information on the 
Haringey website.  It was suggested that the materials be reviewed 
and updated as necessary and that SACRE consider how to signpost 
schools and faith communities to these materials.  
 

 
 

SACRE08.   
 

REPORT ON NASACRE CONFERENCE ~ NATIONAL STRATEGY 
PROPOSALS 

 

  
The Chair announced that she had attended the Conference in 
Birmingham representing Haringey SACRE.  Delegates were 
introduced to proposals for a National Strategy for Religious 
Education and SACRE were able to see what these included.   
 
There was a useful page in the strengthening SACREs information 
about how a SACRE can monitor RE differently in the years following 
an Agreed Syllabus launch, which our SACRE could consider. 
 

 
 

SACRE09.   
 

NASACRE STRENGTHENING SACRE'S PROPOSALS  

 Ms Chaplin advised the Committee that the attached plans for 
SACREs effectiveness had been produced by NASACRE to inform 
the Strategy proposals. 
 
RESOLVED 
 
That Members note the report. 
 

 
 

SACRE10.   
 

AOB  

 Ms Chaplin informed the Committee that she had tabled a press 
release and published Ofsted report for members to take home and 
read in order to keep abreast of what was happening nationally and to 
bring back to the next meeting. 
 
RESOLVED 
 
That members consider and note the tabled Ofsted press release and 

 
 

Page 4



MINUTES OF THE STANDING ADVISORY COMMITTEE FOR RELIGIOUS EDUCATION 
MONDAY, 18 JUNE 2007 

 

report. 
 

SACRE11.   
 

DATES OF NEXT MEETINGS  

 It was agreed that a meeting would be needed in December to agree 
the Annual report.  The proposed date for a meeting in January was 
changed to 13 December to ensure this could happen.  Two further 
meetings will need to be agreed for the next municipal years in the 
school summer term. 
 
The September meeting may be held at St Thomas More School – 
Ms Kambalu to check availability. 
 
Wednesday 12 September 2007 ~ confirmed date. 
Thursday 13 December 2007 ~ provisional date. 
Tuesday 4 March 2007 ~ confirmed date. 
 
All meetings start at 7:00pm. 
 
Possible Agenda items for the next meeting: 
 

1. Launch of the Syllabus.  
2. SACRE website and the Council website. 
3. Ofsted Long Report on RE. 
4. Membership of young people on SACRE. 
5. SACRE being proactive – going out into the community. 

 
 

The meeting ended at 9:30pm. 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
Jenny Stonhold 
Chair 
 

 

Page 5



Page 6

This page is intentionally left blank



The Future of RE & SACREs 
 

Extracts from the REC proposed national RE strategy: 

 

A NATIONAL STRATEGY FOR RELIGIOUS EDUCATION 

The following areas of development should be pursued in a strategic way by the RE 

Partnership to improve the quality of RE in English schools: 

 

A. Policy development 

 

1. The Department has pursued a more active course in RE over recent years. This needs 

to be continued to help RE maintain its position in relation to the National Curriculum 

(both comprising the basic curriculum). 

 

2. An inter-department liaison group should be established to ensure the DfES, 

Department of Communities and Local Government, Department of Culture Media and 

Sport and the Home Office work closer together in developing policy and initiatives 

related to religion and beliefs and education, in particular in relation to the role and 

activities of RE and of local SACREs. 

 

3. RE should be aligned more closely with other related developments in education, 

particularly citizenship, personal social health education with its significance for moral 

education, diversity and community cohesion, and the personalisation of learning, to 

ensure a synergetic approach to the contribution of education to social and community 

issues. The Ajegbo Review points to the increasing challenge of fragmentation and 

diversity with implications for religion and beliefs and education. The Gilbert 2020 

Vision Report has highlighted the importance of personalising learning and the need for 

schools to respond to the ethnically and socially diverse nature of society. Given the 

characteristically synoptic scope of RE, specifically the Department should consider both 

reports in relation to RE. A citizenship/diversity/RE liaison group should be established 

within the DfES and its related agencies. 

 

4. The inclusive approach to religions and beliefs (reflected in the Framework) should 

continue to be the basis for government policy on RE in all schools, including faith 

schools, independent schools and academies, on the further development of the RE 

Partnership, and on the development of the work of local SACREs. 

 

5. The dissemination and further implementation of the Framework should be vigorously 

pursued through the current structures of the subjects in order to make it as effective as 

possible in all schools; and specifically the DfES should (a) review funding agreements 

with academies to ensure provision of inclusive RE according to the Framework, and (b) 

enable RE to be able to be the lead subject in humanities specialist colleges. 

 

Agenda Item 6Page 7



6. The Department should also establish a national RE review body to consider whether 

the current statutory arrangements and structure for RE in England are fit for purpose. 

The review should consider (a) the merits of different options for the statutory basis of 

the RE curriculum in all maintained schools in relation to the National Curriculum, and 

(b) whether the statutory arrangements for RE post-16 are sufficiently comprehensive to 

meet the needs of the whole range of young people in education and of a diverse society. 

As and when it is then appropriate the QCA should look at the effectiveness and impact 

of the current Framework and prepare for a review of it alongside any further 

developments of the National Curriculum. 

 

7. The Department should review Circular 1/94, including the implications of the above 

but specifically to include a) a review of the status of humanists in relation to RE, (b) a 

review of the role of SACREs to enable them to work with all schools and colleges, 

including FE colleges, in their area, (c) a review of the right of withdrawal in relation to 

the duties on schools to promote community cohesion, and combat racism and 

discrimination, (d) a review of the complaints process regarding RE, and (e) a review of 

its guidance on collective worship in schools. It should then issue new guidance on how 

schools and others can comply with their legal requirements for RE. 

 

8. The partnership developed between the Department and the RE community through 

the RE Council should be continued and extended, specifically (a) to fund the RE 

Partnership arrangements from 2007, (b) to manage and implement a national strategy for 

RE 2008-11, complementary to the review of the secondary curriculum, the development 

of subject associations, the education outside the classroom and other curriculum 

initiatives, (c) to mount a public information and relations campaign to raise awareness of 

the agreed aims and nature of RE according to the Framework (d) to welcome the 

establishment of a National Centre for RE by the RE community as is currently planned 

for 2009-10. 

 

9. The Department should ensure that the NSCL develops its provision to ensure head 

teachers and senior managers are aware not only of their responsibilities and roles 

concerning RE but of the consequences for young people and society when such 

responsibilities are not met. 

 

 

B. Curriculum and assessment development 

 

Pupil under-achievement, due often to insufficiently motivating and challenging teaching, 

low expectations, weaknesses in planning and assessment, and curriculum incoherence, 

needs to be tackled. Ways and means also need to be found to reintroduce attention to 

spiritual and moral development, including opportunities for students to reflect critically 

on their own beliefs and values, and to RE as a reference point for this in all schools, 

sixth form colleges and FE colleges. The effectiveness of the Framework is being 

impeded as a mechanism for ensuring better quality in the process of teaching and 

learning in RE by too many variations in its use by different agreed syllabuses, in 

planning and assessment, and by insufficient guidance and training. 

Page 8



 

1. QCA should provide guidance for local authorities on the effective use of the 

Framework in reviewing an agreed syllabus; 

2. QCA should provide more explicit guidance, exemplification and case study material 

to support the effective implementation and use of the Framework, in primary and 

secondary schools’ planning and assessment of teaching and learning, including exemplar 

units of work and assessment tasks (this to be done alongside work with the current 

primary strategy and national roll out of the secondary curriculum). 

 

3. QCA should produce guidance on how the Framework may be most effectively used to 

support RE syllabuses in faith school settings. 

 

C. Qualifications development 

 

The nature, relevance and quality of qualifications in RE and related areas needs to be 

examined, extended and improved, particularly to ensure they are inclusive, relevant, 

accessible through life long learning. Achievement at Entry level, GCSE, AS, A Level, 

AEA provision, needs to rise in many secondary schools. The popularity of AS, A and 

AEA Level RS as reflected in the increasing take-up rate in recent years needs to be 

recognised by the provision of this as a course option in all 16-19 education institutions, 

including FE colleges. 

 

Religion and belief play a very significant role in many workplaces and occupations, 

including health, tourist, catering, social work and law enforcement. In addition, many 

thousands of people are employed, directly or indirectly, in a paid or voluntary capacity, 

full or part time in aspects of religious and/or charitable activities and communities. The 

contribution of RE to enhancing achievement in these areas needs to be much more fully 

developed, so other means of accrediting a beliefs and values dimension of vocational 

education in these same institutions should be developed. 

 

1. QCA should bring Entry Level, GCSE, AS, A and AEA qualifications in religious 

studies into alignment with the Framework. 

 

2. QCA should review the merits or otherwise of linking qualifications in RE with other 

related areas, e.g. citizenship as recommended by the Ajegbo report. 

 

3. QCA should develop vocational routes for the provision and study of religion and 

beliefs, and qualifications to accredit such study. 

 

D. SACREs Development 

 

The capacities for local Standing Advisory Council on RE to support and monitor RE 

locally should be strengthened. Provision should be made to assist with the recruitment 

and training of those who serve on SACREs, especially those from faith communities and 

humanism. The feasibility of extending their brief to include the maintained system in its 

Page 9



entirety - including all faith schools, foundation schools, specialist academies, trust 

schools and FE colleges - should be pursued as a matter of urgency. 

 

1. More detailed guidance on the role and effectiveness of SACREs should be developed 

by government departments involved with religion, education and the community jointly, 

and issued to local authorities, specifically on linking the work of SACREs with the work 

of local authorities, school improvement, inter-faith and community cohesion initiatives 

in local areas. 

 

2. The Department should work with its partners to increase the effectiveness of SACREs 

locally, particularly in relation to community cohesion, diversity and citizenship, and 

specifically (a) to ensure minority faith community and humanist representation is fully 

recognised and effective, (b) to promote better training, support and advice for members, 

(c) to ensure liaison and effective working relationships with local inter-faith, citizenship 

and other local authority community cohesion groups, and (d) to arrange access to 

existing and new data on standards in RE. 

 

3. A campaign should be implemented to raise awareness of the role and work of 

SACREs, and specifically to recruit a fuller and more inclusive representation on them, 

including humanists, following the model trialled by the REC over the last six months. 

 

4. A national training course for new members of SACREs should be established for 

regional delivery, again along the lines of the REC pilot, plus refresher courses for 

established members. 

 

5. Guidance should be issued by QCA and Ofsted specifically on how SACREs can 

monitor their work, and on how they can best monitor the standards of RE in their 

schools. This should take account of pilot work done by the National Association of 

SACREs with support from the REC. 

 

E. Professional development 

 

1. Improving Teacher supply 

Steps have been taken in recent years by Department and TDA to maintain target figures 

for secondary RE, during a period when those for other subjects are falling. These should 

be continued and extended so as to address the overall lack of qualified specialist strength 

in the subject, and to consolidate teacher supply. Attention should be given to ensuring 

that those recruited to become primary teachers have the opportunity to train as primary 

RE co-ordinators or subject leaders. 

 

2. Improving Teacher training (ITT/ITE) 

All providers of primary teacher education and training – HEIs, SCITTs and ERBs – 

need to include appropriate grounding in RE for all students within their courses. 

Provision needs to be made for subject conversion courses to supplement Subject 

Knowledge Booster Courses for students recruited to train as secondary RE specialists, 

but who lack academic depth in the subject from their undergraduate studies. 

Page 10



 

• TDA should establish a review group to look at the provision and quality of RE training 

for new primary and secondary teachers and make recommendations for improvement. 

 

3. Improving Teacher training (CPD) 

Provision should be made to ensure that every teacher who is engaged in RE is 

appropriately supported so that they are both competent and confident in working with 

pupils on this subject area. Over a five year period this should be achieved for every 

primary class teacher. Without direct support in working with the different equations of 

belief, it is unrealistic to expect every class teacher to be wise in this respect. Similarly, 

provision should be made to support secondary teachers wishing to teach RE but with no 

relevant formal qualification. For those employed in a limited amount of teaching of RE 

basic skills training should be available. For those wishing to become specialists, RE 

training courses should be provided. Comparable provision should also be extended to 

Teaching Assistants, both primary and secondary, as appropriate. As for other priority 

concerns, delivery of provision should be regionally coordinated for maximum outreach. 

 

(a) The RE Partnership should work to increase the role and effectiveness of ASTs, lead 

practitioners and specialist humanities colleges in RE. 

 

(b) The TDA, working with the REC and other stakeholders, should (a) establish a set of 

standards for different levels of CPD in RE with related guidance, (b) develop proposals 

for a coherent programme of CPD opportunities for teachers of RE at different levels of 

expertise, and (c) pilot projects on supporting non-specialist teachers and co-ordinators of 

RE, based on the Framework. 

 

(c) A programme of CPD (both on-line and face to face) should be put into place from 

2008-11, to be funded jointly by the RE Partnership, SACREs and other stakeholders, 

including schools. Any programme would need to have agreed arrangements for national 

administration and a combination of regional and local delivery. The opportunity should 

be taken to ensure that HEI provider strengths for RE are mutually reinforcing for both 

CPD and ITT. 

 

(d) Courses to equip teachers to become middle and senior managers should be 

strengthened in the attention they give to RE. This should not be confined to familiarity 

with legal requirements, but extend to the substance of RE, and the consequences of non-

provision. Provision should become the norm both from within the NCSL and in more 

local provision. 

 

F. Research and Development 

The strong research tradition which is now an established part of the DfES annual 

operation should be extended to include more direct attention to RE. This should be 

pursued on aspects, which are currently most underdeveloped or in greatest contention, 

including: 

 

Page 11



1. 16-19 - the current nature and extent of provision for extending and deepening 

religious and moral understanding on the part of students in the FE context as compared 

with the rest of 16-19 provision, and including case studies; 

 

2. Student Councils. - the potential contributions both of Schools Councils and Young 

People's SACREs to inter-cultural understanding and community cohesion. 

 

 

Extracts from the Ofsted Long Report ‘ Making sense of  
religion’. 

 

Recommendations 
The following recommendations are made to bring about improvements to 
religious education. 

The Department for Education and Skills (DFES) should: 

n review whether: 
− the current statutory arrangements for RE, including those for post-

16 provision, are effective  
− the Framework could become the statutory basis for locally agreed 

syllabuses, allowing for some local determination of specific content 
to reflect local circumstances 

− the Framework could become the basis for the inclusion of RE within 
the National Curriculum 

n consider ways in which SACREs might be enabled to play a stronger role 
in promoting the priorities of community cohesion and educating for 
diversity. 

The Qualifications and Curriculum Authority (QCA) should: 

n develop further guidance to support the effective use of the Framework 
in constructing agreed syllabuses 

n provide further opportunities for SACREs to share good practice 
n extend the range of accredited courses for RE to ensure that the needs 

of all students are met 
n secure greater continuity and progression in RE for the 11 to 19 years 

age group by aligning the assessment criteria for accredited courses 
with the attainment targets and levels in the Framework  

n ensure that accredited courses place greater emphasis on enabling 
pupils to understand the changing social significance of religion in the 
modern world 

Page 12



n when reviewing the Framework, consider whether the two attainment 
targets for RE are an effective basis for planning and assessment. 

Local authorities, in partnership with their SACREs, need to:  

n consider ways in which SACREs can be better supported to enable them 
to fulfil their responsibilities effectively 

n use the Framework rigorously in reviewing their agreed syllabus, and 
thoroughly assess the impact of their existing syllabus on standards and 
the quality of planning and assessment 

n consider how the work of SACREs might support further the promotion 
of community cohesion and educating for diversity.  

Secondary schools should: 

n improve the quality of curriculum planning and assessment, particularly 
at Key Stage 3 

n use their locally agreed syllabus more systematically and effectively to 
improve provision for RE. 

Primary schools should: 

n improve the quality of teachers’ RE subject knowledge 
n focus on RE in the course of whole-school development work, where 

appropriate. 

All schools should: 

n ensure that RE contributes strongly to pupils’ understanding of the 
changing role of religion, diversity and community cohesion. 

Providers of ITT should:  

n strengthen the arrangements for selecting and training RE subject 
mentors to ensure that trainees receive high quality training. 

 

Part B. Religious education in context: its future in the 
21st century 

Are the current statutory arrangements constraining 
development in religious education?  

1. Despite the positive features noted earlier, lack of clarity about continuity 
and progression in the curriculum, and weaknesses in the way pupils’ 

Page 13



progress is defined and assessed, contribute significantly to the slow pace 
of improvement in RE. These raise questions about the quality and 
effectiveness of agreed syllabuses. 

n Do the agreed syllabuses provide an effective basis for planning and 
assessing RE? 

n Does the national Framework help to resolve some of these problems? 
n Do the current statutory arrangements serve RE well? 
n Are the current arrangements for producing agreed syllabuses effective 

in driving improvement and responding to wider educational changes? 

2. Current statutory arrangements derive from legislation in 1944 and 1988, 
but there have been many changes since, the most recent being the 
publication of the Framework and the emerging proposals for a national 
strategy for RE. At the same time, there have been changes in the 
relationship between local authorities and schools, an increasing emphasis 
on school self-determination and school self-evaluation, and lighter-touch 
inspections. Other changes are also having an impact on the religious 
education of children and young people in England, including more diverse 
faith schools and the introduction of faith-based academies and trust 
schools.  

3. The proposals of the recently published report of the teaching and learning 
in 2020 review group have significant implications for personalising learning 
and curriculum flexibility. Those with responsibility for RE need to be in a 
position to respond quickly to these developments.1 

4. Ofsted’s evaluation of the work of SACREs in 2004 questioned the capacity 
of many local authorities to undertake their responsibilities for developing 
and reviewing their locally agreed syllabus. The report noted: 

‘All agreed syllabuses seen meet statutory requirements, but their 
quality varied considerably. Very few syllabuses seen were of high 
enough quality throughout to make a consistently sound basis for 
good planning, teaching, learning and assessment.’2 

5. The Framework and the plans to introduce a national strategy for RE are 
significant moves towards providing a national basis for planning and 
assessing RE.3 Developing and publishing the non-statutory Framework in 

                                                 
1 2020 Vision: Report of the Teaching and Learning in 2020 Review Group (DfES 04255),DfES, 
2006. 
2 An evaluation of the work of Standing Advisory Councils for Religious Education (HMI 2269), 
Ofsted, 2004. 
3 Following a feasibility study carried out by the QCA in 2002 into the prospect of a national 
framework for RE, the DfES commissioned the QCA to prepare a non-statutory framework, along 

Page 14



2004 involved high levels of cooperation between the QCA and the DfES, 
and also with the major faith communities and professional associations for 
RE in England; all were part of the development work and endorsed the 
Framework. In February 2006 the leaders of the major faith communities 
signed a joint statement committing their schools to use the Framework, 
leading to the possibility that, before long, all maintained schools in 
England, whether faith-based or not, will link their RE to nationally agreed 
standards. 

6. The Framework provides a coherent basis for planning and assessment. 
Each element contributes to continuity and progression within and between 
the key stages and the elements are integrated with each other. For 
example, the ‘knowledge, skills and understanding’ and the general 
descriptions for Key Stage 3 are designed to enable most pupils to achieve 
level 5 and above. Similarly, the ‘breadth of study’ prescribes the themes to 
be taught, the experiences and opportunities for learning, and the Christian 
and other religions and world views that form the context for pupils’ 
learning at Key Stage 3. Even so, the Framework’s effectiveness in 
improving the quality of agreed syllabuses and of RE in schools depends to 
a large extent on the action taken by local authorities, agreed syllabus 
conferences and SACREs.  

7. During 2006, HMIs evaluated how the Framework was used in constructing 
syllabuses and its impact on provision in schools. Although the evaluation 
focused on agreed syllabuses which were produced soon after the 
Framework was published, the initial findings raise some concerns.4 
Overwhelmingly, agreed syllabuses were being designed to take some 
account of the Framework. In some cases, almost all the main elements of 
the Framework were incorporated into the agreed syllabus and this ensured 
overall coherence. These examples, however, were the exception.  

8. Agreed syllabus conferences did not use the Framework in a consistent 
way. Many used it as a resource: some elements were selected, others 
ignored and some merged with other material. Most syllabuses incorporated 
the eight-level scale from the Framework, but not always in ways which 
supported effective planning and assessment.  

9. A small number of local authorities adopted an agreed syllabus which did 
not follow the Framework’s structure. In some local authorities, often those 
with a high level of support from RE advisory staff, this led to innovative 

                                                                                                                                                 
the lines of a National Curriculum subject booklet, for RE. This was to be used primarily to guide 

the development of agreed syllabuses in England, to improve their quality, and to bring more 
commonality to them. 
4 At the time of the survey, eight agreed syllabuses written to the new Framework had been 
inspected. 

Page 15



thinking about the subject. In others, selected features were carefully 
integrated with elements from the previous syllabus. Schools which had a 
high level of professional support to implement the new syllabus were able 
to use it effectively to improve their planning and assessment. Overall, the 
picture was one of considerable inconsistency.  

10. For most local authorities, adopting the entire Framework would require a 
major revision of the existing agreed syllabus. Early indications are that 
some conferences are not willing to do this. This reflects resistance by 
some teachers on agreed syllabus conferences who wish to keep the 
existing content as far as possible. Reluctance to write new schemes of 
work or buy new resources may be understandable, but it prevents much 
needed review. 

11. Partial adoption of the Framework often leads to confusion. One local 
authority used the text of the Framework at each stage, followed by the 
units of work from the previous syllabus with minor changes, in an attempt 
to bring them into line. On the whole, these units were unrelated to the 
Framework sections, so teachers were either continuing to teach the old 
units, unaware of the significance of the insertions from the Framework, or 
confused at the juxtaposition of what they saw as two quite different 
syllabuses and unsure of which to focus on in their planning. 

12. In some syllabuses the match of content to assessment requirements was 
confused. In one case, an agreed syllabus included the key stage sections 
of the Framework and stated that the units of study matched the 
requirements of the eight-level scale. But the content and activities in the 
syllabus did not reflect the breadth and depth of study implied in the 
Framework because the units were narrowly focused. 

13. In another case, the syllabus provided programmes of study that were 
virtually independent of the Framework; teachers found it difficult to relate 
the main syllabus strands to the levels derived from the Framework. One 
agreed syllabus had produced a ‘pupil-speak’ version of the levels, but this 
did not provide comprehensive coverage of the level descriptions. The 
result was that the definition of standards did not match that which was 
recommended nationally. 

14. Early findings suggest that pupils will find it difficult to reach the standards 
in the Framework because they are not being taught precisely enough the 
‘knowledge, skills and understanding’ and/or encountering the ‘breadth of 
study’ which is designed to match these standards.  

15. Given the strong consensus about the Framework, the question is raised 
about whether it should be statutory, in its present or any revised form. 

Page 16



Currently, local authorities must review their agreed syllabus for RE once 
every five years. The response to national developments is therefore often 
slow. Possible ways forward include the following: 

n further guidance could be developed to help agreed syllabus 
conferences to use the Framework more effectively and coherently 

n the Framework could become the statutory basis for locally agreed 
syllabuses, leaving space for some local determination of specific 
content to reflect local circumstances, such as religious diversity 

n the Framework could become the basis for the inclusion of RE within the 
National Curriculum. 

16. Although controversial in some respects, the last suggestion would have the 
support of many SACRE members, teachers and other professionals in RE. 
Many teachers, often supported by senior managers, argue that local 
determination weakens RE and contributes significantly to its low status in 
the curriculum. 

17. In the absence of a statutory national syllabus, publishers find it difficult to 
decide how to focus their publications and other resources, so much of the 
published material is too general. If the Framework were to become a 
nationally agreed syllabus, it would provide a secure basis from which 
publishers could develop materials. The publication of the Framework has 
helped, but it has not given them the confidence to produce innovative new 
materials.  

18. In schools with sixth forms, post-16 core RE remains a problem. Some sixth 
forms provide good opportunities for students to extend their study of 
religion through, for example, general studies sessions or day conferences. 
Many schools, however, do not meet the statutory requirements. The 
current anomaly that statutory requirements apply to RE in sixth forms but 
not in further education colleges is difficult to justify. With the increasing 
number of students in sixth forms taking accredited courses in religious 
studies, the major priority for RE at post-16 level would seem to be 
developing examination provision in further education colleges, rather than 
enforcing the statutory requirement in sixth forms. 

Is there a future for SACREs? 

19. SACREs watch the current debate about the statutory basis of the RE 
curriculum carefully. Many SACRE members fear that increased 
centralisation of the curriculum may threaten their future. Many local 
authorities claim to find it very difficult to provide their SACRE with the 
necessary level of professional support to function effectively and respond 
to change. Furthermore, the increased emphasis on school self-
determination and self-evaluation raises questions about the role of SACREs 

Page 17



in monitoring provision. The current arrangement in which each local 
authority and SACRE tries to develop and implement its own syllabus is 
inefficient and may not serve the subject well. Garnering limited resources 
and focusing them on developing national guidance might prove more 
effective.  

20. There are, however, powerful arguments for retaining SACREs. They reflect 
the continuing importance of religious and non-religious beliefs in the lives 
of individuals and communities. It is essential that local faith communities 
are confident that what is taught is accurate and balanced. Parents, 
whether involved in faith communities or not, need to be assured that their 
child’s school respects diversity, understands the importance which belief 
and commitment play in developing personal identity, and supports the 
growth of community cohesion. Enabling the representatives of this 
diversity to meet is important. Only a very small proportion of parents 
exercise their legal right to withdraw their children from RE so, in part, this 
may reflect the confidence of those of faith or no faith in a curriculum that 
has been ‘agreed’ by their representatives.  

21. With agreed syllabus conferences, SACREs provide diverse religious and 
non-religious communities with a unique opportunity to contribute to the 
curriculum and gain insights into issues in English education.  

‘All members of SACREs… acknowledged that their membership had 
significantly increased their understanding and appreciation of other 
faiths. They also recognised the unique role of religious education in 
promoting mutual understanding in a multi-faith community, and this 
recognition had been written into most agreed syllabuses. Individual 
SACREs had produced outcomes of work in this area, such as a 
calendar of festivals in the local community or a poster of children’s 
drawings reflecting on the destruction of the World Trade Centre.’5   

22. In a climate where dialogue between religious communities, community 
cohesion and respect for diversity are important, the opportunities provided 
by SACREs should not be underestimated. Involving teachers at a local level 
can be particularly advantageous: their representatives bring professional 
expertise to SACREs and agreed syllabus conferences and give teachers a 
say in what they teach. Although the number of teachers involved in 
developing agreed syllabuses is often small, those involved benefit from 
close contact with members of faith communities, bringing fresh ideas for 
joint work.  

                                                 
5
 An evaluation of the work of Standing Advisory Councils for Religious Education (HMI 2269), 
Ofsted, 2004. 

Page 18



23. The present arrangements benefit RE by stimulating creative thinking and 
innovative ideas locally. The opportunity for teachers and faith communities 
to work together can have a very positive impact. Recently, a number of 
innovative agreed syllabuses have helped to advance thinking about the 
subject. Greater centralisation might endanger this creativity. 

24. The range and effectiveness of the work of SACREs have increased in 
recent years. Many have been innovative in providing opportunities to 
support, celebrate and encourage good RE through lively initiatives. SACREs 
have supported the development of resources on local faith communities, 
enabled visitors from faith groups to work in schools, organised arts 
competitions focused on RE, run local student parliaments of religions, and 
sponsored exhibitions and lecture programmes linked to RE.  

25. Regardless of whether the RE curriculum is locally or nationally devised, 
SACREs are necessary to give faith communities and other local interests 
confidence that schools provide a broad and balanced RE curriculum that 
meets legal requirements. 

26. Many SACREs are not focused sufficiently on raising achievements in RE 
and improving the quality of teaching and learning. They are not integrated 
sufficiently into the professional structure and priorities of their local 
authority, and do not receive sufficient support.  

27. In a context of increasing school self-determination, SACREs are in a good 
position to advise on self-evaluation; they are also well placed to draw from 
schools’ self-evaluations in RE and, in that role, well placed to gather 
intelligence about RE in their local area. It is a matter for individual SACREs, 
in partnership with their local authority, to decide whether and how to link 
their monitoring process to school self-evaluation. Monitoring by the SACRE 
should evaluate the agreed syllabus and identify trends in standards, pupil 
achievement and provision. 

28. Some SACREs already intend to ask for information from a sample of 
schools’ self-evaluation processes. Where capacity allows, SACREs 
supplement such information with monitoring visits to schools and feedback 
from teachers’ meetings and support groups.  

29. The strength of SACREs lies in their multi-faith, multi-ethnic and multi-
cultural composition. Some have responded very effectively to the current 
priorities of community cohesion and diversity, for example by developing 
links with local inter-faith networks or introducing youth faith forums. These 
achievements suggest a widening of the defined role for SACREs to reflect 
these priorities. 

Page 19



Page 20

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 7Page 21



Page 22



Page 23



Page 24



Page 25



Page 26



Page 27



Page 28



Page 29



Page 30



Page 31



Page 32



Page 33



Page 34



Page 35



Page 36



Page 37



Page 38



Page 39



Page 40



Page 41



Page 42



Page 43



Page 44



Page 45



Page 46



Page 47



Page 48



Page 49



Page 50



Page 51



Page 52



Page 53



Page 54



Page 55



Page 56



Page 57



Page 58



Page 59



Page 60



Page 61



Page 62



Page 63



Page 64

This page is intentionally left blank



Lat Blaylock, RE Today. lat@retoday.org.uk. Permission granted to copy for your SACRE 

30+ things a good SACRE can do. 
 
Any SACRE could be passive and reactive, but this is a plea for activism from 
SACREs.  I hold the view that any SACRE, large or small, expert or 
developing, should consider how to take action in pursuit of its mission to 
guard and develop standards in RE. 
 
I think that SACREs are more powerful than we have yet seen – statutory 
bodies, in all local authorities, with representation from religion, 
professionalism and democratic structure are powerful, but often don’t notice 
their powers. Both dependent upon the LA, and independent of it, the SACREs 
that do most for RE are powerful. 
 
I like the idea of activism, because it represents the capacity of the SACRE to 
make a difference, rather than merely maintain itself. Perhaps a rule of thumb 
for activism might be ‘does this SACRE innovate at least one project every 
year?’ Is yours an activist SACRE? 
 

 
 

 
© Lat Blaylock,  

RE today,  
Autumn 2006 

 

Agenda Item 8Page 65



Lat Blaylock, RE Today. lat@retoday.org.uk. Permission granted to copy for your SACRE 

30+ things a good SACRE can do. 
 

Flexing the activists’ muscles. 
 
1. Ask the LA for money. Tackle the question of the SACRE’s own funding needs. I think 

NASACRE has an important role here, to disseminate best practice in funding SACREs. 
Some of you manage without anyone to pay the cost of stamps, and others can find tens 
of thousands of pounds of local authority money from a core services budget for working 
parties and agreed syllabus work. Connecting the work of SACRE with citizenship and 
community cohesion is a route some have taken here. This is, for some SACREs, the 
essential first step to becoming activist. 

 
2. Monitor and praise. Monitor schools performance through reading OFSTED reports 

(this data not as good as it was, so needs supplementing by GCSE and SIMS scores 
from secondary schools and any possible sources from Primary schools, especially with 
regard to self evaluation in schools). Will school improvement partnerships be able to 
give us some data as their work unfolds? Celebrate success, and seek to find at least 
three schools in each key stage that are ‘beacons’ for its RE ~ then spread the word 
about them.  

 
3. Information on provision. Send out questionnaires to schools, or to pupils, (named or 

even anonymous?) to support teachers in the endless ‘status skirmishing’ required of RE 
subject leaders in their battle for more of the buns, rather than just the crumbs. 
Information is power here – can schools say ‘we know we need to improve, because of 
what SACRE say’? Can they say that they know how to improve because of their 
SACRE’s advice? 

 
4. Offer professional development. Providing or organising CPD and INSET for teachers, 

with faith communities to the fore (using the expertise of SACRE members?), running 
conferences for a day, to bring SACRE members, teachers and governors together, or 
doing courses on new syllabuses, guidance, schemes of work or planning. Staffordshire, 
Leicestershire, Gloucestershire and Poole all do this, along with many others. Maybe the 
TDA will even help us with this soon! REC’s training commission report should be on 
every SACRE’s agenda. 

 
5. Inspect the inspectors. Monitoring OFSTED inspection performance and complaining 

to the office of HMCI. (Could we do that 21st century contextualisation activity, where 
students write up ‘the parable of the good OFSTED inspector’?) Why don’t they mention 
RE even if its non-compliant, or if its excellent? This needs challenging locally and 
nationally. SACREs might take this up with inspection contractors. 

 
6. Try a resource project. Activist SACREs offer local religions chances to resource RE in 

local, authentic and contemporary ways. Make a booklet or CD Rom of photos, contacts, 
teaching and learning activities related to a dozen places of worship in the Local 
Authority area, as Leicestershire, Blackburn and Coventry have done. This makes 
schools grateful to SACREs – and can even produce some revenue!  

 
7. Give authentic faith community voices an audience among teachers. Write from 

faith to school: Redbridge’s excellent briefing papers on Sikh dress, observing Ramadan, 
Jehovah’s Witnesses and RE, and other topics are all good models. And it doesn’t have 
to be written: Video, photopack or visiting speaker work even better. 

Page 66



Lat Blaylock, RE Today. lat@retoday.org.uk. Permission granted to copy for your SACRE 

 
8. Tell parents. Publishing a parents’ leaflet, to highlight the value of community 

involvement in RE. Show off some pupils work! (Barnsley have done this with their 
SACRE annual report) This could significantly shift one of RE’s perennial problems, that 
parental attitudes always seem at least a generation out of date. DFES’s contribution 
here was nice, but could be bettered! 

 
9. Gather information. Monitoring standards and examination results, time for RE, subject 

leadership and other aspects of provision. Information is power in this context, and local 
authorities can reasonably be asked to provide information to the SACRE. 
Northamptonshire’s approach is exemplary, among many others. 

 
10. Exemplification. Get together some pupils’ work that exemplifies standards in RE with 

reference to the local syllabus, at levels 1-8. The exemplification is important to establish 
standards, and such projects have a powerful impact, specially for those new to an area 
or new to a syllabus. As for example Warwickshire, Worcestershire, Leicester and 
Hertfordshire local authorities have done, to the great benefit of their teachers. 

 
11. Run a local parliament of religions for 15~17 year olds. Can we think of a better way 

of helping young citizens see the place of faith in the 21st century? Inter faith projects 
model the best of RE and are always exciting. Prince Charles did one – make him your 
role model! Bradford and Lancashire have done. 

 
12. Organise an arts competition: RE improves where it gets more creative, and the linked 

curriculum models increasingly popular in primary schools can make this very useful. 
Design the cover for the new syllabus ~ as children in Gloucestershire, Lincoln and 
Hereford have done. Why not relate faith and spirituality to poetry, drama or creative 
writing too? NATRE’s ‘Art in Heaven’ competition is a model (see 
www.NATRE.org.uk/spiritedarts)  

 
13. Help the SEN schools and teachers. Some SACREs have used the LA’s good offices 

to give particular support to SEN schools for RE, and others have made a section of their 
Agreed Syllabus that addresses this clearly and helpfully. Training and CPD can go with 
this. 

 
14. Facilitate some exhibitions. In Croyden and Coventry, hundreds of children from 

dozens of schools attended and learned from exhibitions at the faith community buildings 
of several religions over a period of years. Copy that. Or invite the national faith 
community bodies to mount a ‘Jewish way of life’ for your schools to visit. Or similar. 

 
15. Do an essay competition. RE today and partners promote an essay competition on the 

spiritual principles for life in conjunction with the Templeton Foundation. A SACRE would 
be an ideal local partner for this. We may even be able to put you in touch with a grant to 
provide the money for prizes and administration. City of Derby SACRE have made a 
great success of this. 

 
16. Book the stage. Arrange a pupil performance, like those hundreds inspired by the RE 

Festival of 1997, or the JC 2000 millennium arts festival. NATRE has a display which we 
hire out! Linking this to a syllabus launch, or an annual lecture is powerful, and involves 
the interaction of pupils and teachers with SACRe members. 

 

Page 67



Lat Blaylock, RE Today. lat@retoday.org.uk. Permission granted to copy for your SACRE 

17. Get lecturers. Set up an annual lecture series for all those interested in RE, as happens 
in Hounslow, Redbridge, Westminster or Kent for example. Link it to the publication of 
the annual SACRE report, and invite the director to preside: directors need to know 
about RE at its best. Hounslow get about 60 to theirs. 

 
18. Be the voice of religion in the Local Authority. Contribute to civic inter faith work, e.g. 

in inter-faith forums or from the millennium, with the Diocese or other faith groups. Send 
and ask for representatives. Ask Leicester City about this. Wandsworth SACRE give 
multicultural and community cohesion guidance to the schools too. 

 
19. Celebrate the grassroots. Make a presentation to the Education Committee about the 

SACRE’s grass roots work with pupils, teachers and schools. Make them proud of the 
religious communities involved, and the sense of inclusion SACRE can create.  

 
20. Smoke out the key voices. Invite key people to speak to the SACRE’s annual 

conference: would this invitation to speak help the Chair of the Education Committee to 
clarify his / her own thinking on RE? What about locally prominent religious leaders? 
Politicians? Nothing concentrates the mind like having to speak thoughtfully to a plural 
audience. Norfolk SACRE had a significant influence on Rt Hon Charles Clarke (a local 
MP in Norwich) when he was Secretary of State. 

 
21. Listen to teachers. Ensure that serving RE teachers are heard every time SACRE 

meets: do the LA and Union seats get filled by people with RE expertise, or without? Can 
the SACRE arrange to have more in-touch voices present? Could half day cover be paid, 
or could it be a standard item on the agenda to hear a report of good practice from the 
classroom? Some SACREs have a representative from NATRE on the Teachers’ 
Committee. 

 
22. Serve 16-19s. Run an active learning day conference for post sixteen students, to model 

for schools great ways of providing RE for all in the sixth forms. Link it to tertiary college 
students as well, to show them what they’re missing. Ask in Lancashire, Cumbria, 
Hertfordshire or Gloucester for experience. The ‘dare2engage’ initiative is a way to get 
started with this – see the website www.dare2engage.ork.uk  

 
23. Every year, innovate. Make sure there’s an annual working party of teachers and faith 

representatives on a key topic: current favourites might include special needs and RE, 
RE for the most able, assessment, RE three to seven, performance management or 
citizenship. 

 
24. Go visiting. Arrange your meetings around the faith communities: Three meetings a 

year could enable six religions to host your SACRE over two years. Hospitality always 
develops community, as Westminster’s SACRE might testify. 

 
25. Get well advised. Use the RE adviser, and if no adviser is available, explore the use of 

an RE consultant for briefing and supporting the SACRE and pursuing its business. 
Many SACREs from Tower Hamlets to Newcastle have done this and been pleased with 
the increased professionalism resulting. 15 days of real professional time is worth more 
than the cash it costs to the activist SACRE. 

 
 
 
 

Page 68



Lat Blaylock, RE Today. lat@retoday.org.uk. Permission granted to copy for your SACRE 

26. Draw attention to yourself ~ be noisy! If the local authority is being inspected, aim to 
get a paragraph in the report, praising the best of your work. Ask for an appointment with 
the inspectorate, and supply your SEF, development plan annual report and syllabus as 
required. Expect to be noticed in any other ways too: in any local government re-
organisation SACREs must be recognised as a core service. Blowing the trumpet will 
help RE. If they ignore you, play a noisy attention seeking game. 

 
27. Be publicists. Let schools and teachers know about prizes and awards for RE, e.g. 

fellowships from Farmington, science and religion awards from the Templeton 
Foundation (via RE Today), the Church College Trusts or the recent Sandford St Martin 
Trust Award for media excellence in RE. Or set one up of your own, and ask some local 
firms, or the library service, to sponsor the prizes and exhibit the winners. 

 
28. Support local groups. NATRE has a link network of over 50 groups for teachers of RE. 

But many SACREs could really help these often small and struggling but professionally 
friendly groups. Can you grow one in your area? Can the Clerk to SACRE help just a 
little with publicity or administration? Have a joint SACRE / teachers’ group meeting? 

 
29. Lobby nationally. Every meeting of a SACRE could result in a letter to DFES, QCA, 

TDA, OFSTED, BECTa or some other nationally powerful institutions (Unions? Faith 
community bodies?) which need (honestly) the benefit of your experience and grass 
roots local knowledge. Activists propose such letters at SACRE meetings, and follow up 
the replies. 

 
30. Tackle the teaching shortage. Don’t give up on teacher supply. If the SACRE asks the 

local authority who is teaching RE, or uses inspection reports to identify shortfalls in 
specialist teaching, then it can take action to improve the most intractable problem RE 
faces. Does the local ITT course speak to the SACRE? Contact the University, and see if 
joint training is a good idea. 

 
31. Education Sunday: this annual opportunity for faith to remember education could be 

taken up at the civic level and among inter faith groups much more than it is. Details are 
published annually by the Churches’ Joint Education Policy Committee. February 2007 is 
your first chance to get involved. 

 
32. Check your own pulse. Use the QCA SEF or the older report on ‘An Effective SACRE: 

Making the difference’ to audit the effectiveness of your own work, and seek to develop 
the role and influence of the SACRE every year. 

 
Most of these ideas, in one form or another, are culled from several years of SCAA / QCA’s 
analyses of SACRE reports, and therefore are all already happening somewhere. Making 
more happen in more places is a definite possibility. It may suggest some new directions for 
some SACREs. 
 

© Lat Blaylock,  
RE Today 

www.retoday.org.uk 

Page 69



Page 70

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes & Matters Arising
	6 NASACRE Chairs of London SACREs
	7 Ofsted Report on RE.
	8 Planning for the Future of Haringey SACRE

